Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet held on Monday, 8th July, 2019 from 4.00 pm - 4.35 pm

Present: J Ash-Edwards (Chairman)

J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair)

J Belsey S Hillier N Webster

R de Mierre A MacNaughton

Officers: Kathryn Hall, Chief Executive; Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief

Executive; Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services; Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources; Simon Hughes, Head of Digital and HR; Alexander Austin, Democratic Services Officer

and Lucinda Joyce Senior Democratic Services Officer.

Also Present: Councillors Chapman, Dabell and Gibson.

1. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

Councillor Hillier declared a personal interest with respect to Item 7 - Procurement for Burgess Hill Place and Connectivity Programme as he is a Member of West Sussex County Council who is a delivery partner.

2. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

None as all Members were present.

3. TO CONFIRM MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 JUNE 2019.

The Chairman noted a minor typographical error on P.5, Paragraph 4 which should say 'scene' rather than 'scheme'. He added that Councillor Clarke was also in attendance at the meeting but was not listed. Once the amendments to the Minutes were made, the minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2019 were agreed.

4. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE LEADER AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

None.

5. BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2019/20 – PROGRESS REPORT APRIL TO MAY 2019

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources, introduced the report which reviewed progress on the Revenue Budget, Capital Programme and Treasury Management for 2019/20 and presented a forecast revenue outturn position at the end of May of a projected net underspend of £347,000 against the original estimate. He added that this early in the year, there is an expectation that much will change in the financial year however currently the Council is in a good position to react to any change.

The Deputy Leader reiterated the comments made by the Head of Corporate Resources and expressed that it is the right position for the early part of the year.

The Cabinet Member for Customer Services drew attention to Paragraph 13, P.10 in which it outlines that the Garden Waste income is slightly below target with a further 400 customers required to reach the target. She speculated whether the service needs to be promoted more through the Council's social media platforms and communication team.

Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive, explained that the Council regularly promotes the scheme and has a campaign that supports its promotion. She expressed her confidence that the target will be met.

The Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery sought clarification about the extra cost pressures on the Outdoor Facilities Grounds maintenance outlined in Appendix A, specifically whether the costs arise from salaries of staff or the management of more parks and playgrounds. He also asked for confirmation about the programme for ensuring the safety of the Council's playgrounds.

The Head of Corporate Resources explained that he did not have the figures however was happy to respond to the Cabinet Member with the exact figures.

The Assistant Chief Executive highlighted the Council's rigorous inspection scheme to ensure the safety of all of the playgrounds in Mid Sussex.

The Leader commended the stability of the Council which enabled to make the investments contained in the report. He then took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

Cabinet noted the report, and recommended to Council;

- that £17,484 grant income relating to Local Authority EU Exit preparation Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 22;
- ii. that £9,916 grant income relating to Cold Weather Fund Payment Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 23;
- iii. that £5,893 grant income relating to Local Authority Data Sharing Programme Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 24;
- iv. that £28,200 grant income relating to New Burdens Universal credits be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 25;
- v. that £24,857 grant income relating to Implementing Welfare Reform Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 26;
- vi. that £756 grant income relating to New Burdens Single Fraud Investigation Service Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 27;

- vii. that £31,658 grant income relating to New Burdens Verify Earnings & Pensions Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 28;
- viii. the variations to the Capital Programme contained in paragraph 35 in accordance with the Council's Financial Procedure rule B3.

6. PERFORMANCE OUTTURN 2018/19

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources, introduced the report which set out the Council's outturn performance for the year 2018/19, analysed using a suite of previously agreed performance indicators. He outlined that performance has overall been positive with 80% of indicators meeting or exceeding their target compared to the previous years' which only achieved 65%. He set out the indicators which were slightly off target and the resolutions to improve them, naming Customer Services response and staff sickness rates as just a few which have improved. Members' attention was also draw to the new performance indicators for sustainability and economic development.

The Leader stated that it is a positive outlook which demonstrated a strong level of performance across the services areas and gives the Council more financial strength than in previous years. He added that this good performance hasn't happened by accident, with changes and investments in services tailored to improving the quality of the services provided.

The Deputy Leader expressed that performance has been good. She believed that the target and performance indicators are challenging, of a high quality and relevant and are kept relevant through the scrutiny process. The new indicators allow the Council to continue to monitor performance.

The Cabinet Member for Community acknowledged the efforts of Sussex Police which made Mid Sussex the safest place to live in West Sussex. He appreciated that anti-social behaviour is still present in Mid Sussex however efforts by the Council are starting to come to fruition. He also drew attention to the Mid Sussex Wellbeing service which has helped 313 clients lose weight, be more active, drink less and smoke less.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth commended the report. He sought clarification on whether the 6.3% return on the Council's tenanted non-residential property portfolio was a good target for a return. He also questioned whether the drop in attendance levels to the Council's leisure centres could be attributed to the improvement works carried out at the leisure centres.

The Head of Corporate Resources explained that the Council does not have a target for the rate of return on the Council's property portfolios because the return will vary from day to day, so it would be hard to quantify due to the fluctuations.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth requested to have information on whether the fluctuations are positive or negative.

The Assistant Chief Executive expressed her satisfaction with the attendance figures. She did note that the figures are subject to fluctuations depending on a variety of factors such as improvement works.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning reminded the Cabinet of the ongoing challenges of homelessness and drew attention to the increase in households who are homeless to 51, up from 37 last year. He also drew attention to the Rent Deposit Guarantee Scheme which was targeted to reach 75 people, however helped 102 households and highlighted the need for the scheme in the District. He expressed that despite working hard to prevent homelessness, this was becoming increasingly challenging with increasing numbers.

The Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery welcomed the report and the flagship activities 2018/2019. He sought assurances from officers that the ongoing actions and outstanding issues will be addressed in the subsequent reports to the Cabinet.

The Head of Corporate Resources stated that he would provide the final reports on completed flagship activities and outstanding issues in following reports to the Cabinet.

The Leader took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

Cabinet noted the report and recommended that the further reporting on rate of return on the Council's property portfolios be added to subsequent reports.

7. PROCUREMENT FOR BURGESS HILL PLACE AND CONNECTIVITY PROGRAMME.

Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive, introduced the report which asked Cabinet to approve the proposed procurement approach for the civil contracting works required to deliver the projects within the Place and Connectivity Programme which are led by this Council. She explained that the aim of the programme is to secure a 15% modal shift to more sustainable forms of transport.

The Leader stated that the project is a good example of all tiers of local government working together. He thought it was worth reflecting on the work the Council had done to secure the funding for this programme and highlighted the significance of the projects; designed to ensure that the connectivity improvements across the town are delivered support the growth programme. He commended the Officers for the work that had been done to secure the infrastructure and ensuring value for money.

The Cabinet Member for Community felt honoured to be involved in the remaking of Burgess Hill. He drew attention to the electric charging points, town-wide cycle paths and new cycle routes in the District which now links into the South Downs Cycle Network. He outlined that the foresight of this Council brought the programme to fruition.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning stated that it has taken a lot of work with the landowners to bring the projects forward and indeed a lot of work to achieve cycle ways.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth welcomed the investment from Central Government. He enquired whether the key partners are happy with the progress.

The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that they are.

The Leader took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

Cabinet recommended to:

- i. delegate responsibility to procure civil and associated works via the Scape Procure Civil Engineering Framework, up to the value of £6.839m to the Assistant Chief Executive, in consultation with the Head of Corporate Resources; and
- ii. add the Mid Sussex led Place and Connectivity Programme projects detailed in Appendix 1 to the Council's Capital Programme.
- 8. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10 DUE NOTICE OF WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.

None.

The meeting finished at 4.35 pm

Chairman